A. ASSIGNMENTS OF ERROR 

1. The trial court erred in giving a flawed reasonable doubt 

instruction, in violation of due process and the right to a jury trial. 

2. The trial comi erred in imposing an 18-month community 

custody term based on appellant's commission of second degree assault 

when that crime qualifies as both a violent offense (18-month term) and a 

crime against a person (12-month te1m). 

Issues Pertaining to Assignments of E1Tor 

1. Does the jury instruction defining reasonable doubt as "one 

for which a reason exists" misdescribe the burden of proof, undermine the 

presumption of innocence, and shift the burden to the accused to provide a 

reason for why reasonable doubt exists? 

2. Second degree assault qualifies as both a "violent offense" 

under RCW 9.94A.030(55)(a)(viii) and a "crime against persons" under 

RCW 9.94A.411(2). The community custody statute, RCW 9.94A.701, 

does not specify which community custody term to impose when an 

offense qualifies as both violent and against persons. Is RCW 9.94A.701 

therefore ambiguous and must the lesser community custody term be 

imposed under the rule of lenity? 
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B. STATEMENT OF THE CASE 

On March 26, 2015, the State charged Jason Thomas by amended 

information with one count of second degree assault. CP 11-12. The State 

alleged that on November 19, 2014, Thomas intentionally assaulted Kavit 

Sanghvi with a deadly weapon and recklessly inflicted substantial bodily 

harm, contrary to RCW 9A.36.021(1)(a) and (c). CP 11. 

The case proceeded to a jury trial on March 26, 2015. 1RP.1 The 

jury found Thomas guilty of second degree assault. CP 24. The jury also 

returned special verdicts finding Thomas was atmed with a deadly weapon 

during commission of the crime and Sanghvi's injuries substantially 

exceeded the level of bodily hatm necessary to constitute substantial bodily 

harm, pursuant to RCW 9.94A.535(3)(y). CP 11, 26-27. 

The standard range sentence with the 12-month deadly weapon 

enhancement2 was 34 to 41 months. CP 55. The trial comi sentenced 

Thomas to an exceptional sentence of 53 months based on Sanghvi's 

mJunes. 5RP 21; CP 55-57. The comi also imposed 18 months of 

community custody because second degree assault is a violent offense under 

RCW 9.94A.030. CP 58. Thomas timely appealed. CP 64. 

1 This brief refers to the verbatim repotts of proceedings as follows: 1RP- March 
26, 2015; 2RP- March 30, 2015; 3RP- March 31, 2015; 4RP- April 1, 2015; 
5RP- May 22,2015. 

2 RCW 9.94A.533(4)(b). 
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C. ARGUMENT 

1. THE MANDATORY JURY INSTRUCTION, "A 
REASONABLE DOUBT IS ONE FOR WHICH A 
REASON EXISTS," IS UNCONSTITUTIONAL. 

At Thomas's trial, the court gave the standard reasonable doubt 

instruction, WPIC 4.01,3 which reads, in part: "A reasonable doubt is one 

for which a reason exists and may arise from the evidence or lack of 

evidence." CP 34; 4RP 111. The Washington Supreme Court requires 

trial comis to give this instruction in every criminal case, at least "until a 

better instruction is approved." State v. Bennett, 161 Wn.2d 303, 318, 165 

P.3d 1241 (2007). This instruction is constitutionally defective for two 

related reasons. 

First, it tells jurors they must be able to miiculate a reason for having 

a reasonable doubt, either to themselves or to fellow jurors. This engrafts an 

additional requirement onto reasonable doubt. Jurors must have more than 

just a reasonable doubt; they must also have an miiculable doubt. This 

makes it more difficult for jurors to acquit and easier for the prosecution to 

obtain convictions. 

Second, telling jurors a reason must exist for reasonable doubt 

unde1mines the presumption of innocence and is substantively identical to 

3 11 WASHINGTON PRACTICE: WASHINGTON PATTERN JURY INSTRUCTIONS: 

CRIMINAL 4.01, at 85 (3d ed. 2008). 
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the fill-in-the-blank arguments that Washington courts have invalidated in 

prosecutorial misconduct cases. If fill-in-the-blank arguments impennissibly 

shift the burden of proof, so does an instruction requiring the same thing. 

For these reasons, WPIC 4.01 violates due process and the right to a 

jury trial. U.S. CONST. amends. VI, XIV; WASI-L CONST. art. I, §§ 3, 22. 

Use of this instruction in Thomas's case is structural error requiring reversal. 

a. WPIC 4.01 's articulation requirement misstates the 
reasonable doubt standard, shifts the burden of proof, 
and undermines the presumption of innocence. 

In order for jury instructions to be sufficient, they must be "readily 

understood and not misleading to the ordinary mind." State v. Dana, 73 

Wn.2d 533, 537, 439 P.2d 403 (1968). "The rules of sentence structure and 

punctuation are the very means by which persons of common understanding 

are able to ascertain the meaning of written words." State v. Simon, 64 Wn. 

App. 948, 958, 831 P.2d 139 (1991), rev'd on other grounds, 120 Wn.2d 

196, 840 P.2d 172 (1992). In examining how an average juror would 

interpret an instruction, appellate courts look to the ordinary meaning of · 

words and rules of grarnmar.4 

4 See, e.g., State v. LeFaber, 128 Wn.2d 896, 902-03, 913 P.2d 369 (1996) (proper 
grammatical reading of self-defense instruction pennitted the jury to find actual 
imminent harm was necessmy, resulting in comt's conclusion that jury could have 
applied the etToneous standard), overruled on other grounds by State v. O'Hara, 
167 Wn.2d 91, 217 P.3d 756 (2009); State v. Noel, 51 Wn. App. 436,440-41, 753 
P.2d 1017 (1988) (relying upon grammatical structure of unanimity instruction to 
determine reasonable juror would read clause to mean jmy must unanimously agree 
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With these principles in mind, the flaw in WPIC 4.01 reveals itself 

with little difficulty. Having a reasonable doubt is not, as a matter of plain 

English, the same as having a reason to doubt. But WPIC 4.01 requires both 

for a jury to return a "not guilty" verdict. Examination of the meaning ofthe 

words "reasonable" and "a reason" shows this to be true. 

Appellate com1s consult the dictionary to determine the ordinary 

meaning of language used in jury instructions. See. e.g., Anfinson v. 

FedEx Ground Package Sys., Inc., 174 Wn.2d 851, 874-75, 281 P.3d 289 

(2012) (turning to dictionary definition of "common" to ascertain the 

jury's likely understanding of the word used in jury instruction); 

Sandstrom v. Montana, 442 U.S. 510, 517, 99 S. Ct. 2450, 61 L. Ed. 2d 39 

(1979) (looking to dictionary definition of the word "presume" to 

detem1ine how jury may have interpreted the instruction). 

"Reasonable" means "being in agreement with right thinking or 

right judgment : not conflicting with reason : not absurd : not 

ridiculous ... being or remaining within the bounds of reason ... having 

the faculty of reason : RATIONAL ... possessing good sound judgment." 

WEBSTER'S THIRD NEW lNT'L DICTIONARY 1892 (1993). For a doubt to be 

reasonable under these definitions, it must be rational, logically derived, and 

upon same act); State v. Smith, 174 Wn. App. 359, 366-68, 298 P.3d 785 (2013) 
(discussing difference between use of "should" rather than use of a word 
indicating "must" regarding when acquittal is appropriate). 
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have no conflict with reason. See Jackson v. Virginia, 443 U.S. 307, 317, 99 

S. Ct. 2781, 61 L. Ed. 2d 560 (1979) ("A 'reasonable doubt,' at a minimum, 

is one based upon 'reason."'); Johnson v. Louisiana, 406 U.S. 356, 360, 92 

S. Ct. 1620, 32 L. Ed. 2d 152 (1972) (collecting cases defining reasonable 

doubt as one "'based on reason which arises from the evidence or lack of 

evidence"' (quoting United States v. Johnson, 343 F.2d 5, 6 n.l (2d Cir. 

1965)). 

Thus, an instruction defining reasonable doubt as "a doubt based on 

reason" would be proper. But WPIC 4.01 does not do that. Instead, WPIC 

4.01 requires "a reason" for the doubt, which is different from a doubt based 

on reason. 

The placement of the article "a" before "reason" in WPIC 4.01 

inappropriately alters and augments the definition of reasonable doubt. "A 

reason" in the context of WPIC 4.01 means "an expression or statement 

offered as an explanation of a belief or assertion or as a justification." 

WEBSTER's, supra, at 1891. In contrast to definitions employing the term 

"reason" in a manner that refers to a doubt based on reason or logic, WPIC 

4.01 's use of the words "a reason" indicates that reasonable doubt must be 

capable of explanation or justification. In other words, WPIC 4.01 requires 

more than just a doubt based on reason; it requires a doubt that is articulable. 

-6-



Due process "protects the accused against conviction except upon 

proof beyond a reasonable doubt of every fact necessary to constitute the 

crime with which he is charged." In re Winship, 397 U.S. 358, 364, 90 S. 

Ct. 1068, 25 L. Ed. 2d 368 (1970). Washington's pattern instruction on 

reasonable doubt instruction is unconstitutional because its language requires 

more than just a reasonable doubt to acquit. It also requires a justification 

or explanation for why reasonable doubt exists. 

Under the cuiTent instruction, jurors could have a reasonable doubt 

but also have difficulty articulating why their doubt is reasonable to 

themselves or others. Scholarship explains this problem: 

An inherent difficulty with an articulability 
requirement of doubt is that it lends itself to reduction 
without end. If the juror is expected to explain the basis for a 
doubt, that explanation gives rise to its own need for 
justification. If a juror's doubt is merely, "I didn't think the 
state's witness was credible," the juror might be expected to 
then say why the witness was not credible. The requirement 
for reasons can all too easily become a requirement for 
reasons for reasons, ad infinitum. 

One can also see a potential for creating a baiTier to 
acquit for less-educated or skillful jurors. A juror who lacks 
the rhetorical skill to communicate reasons for a doubt is 
then, as a matter of law, baiTed from acting on that doubt. 
This bar is more than a basis for other jurors to reject the first 
juror's doubt. It is a basis for them to attempt to convince 
that juror that the doubt is not a legal basis to vote for 
acquittal. 

A troubling conclusion that arises from the 
difficulties of the requirement of articulability is that it 
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hinders the juror who has a doubt based on the belief that the 
totality of the evidence is insufficient. Such a doubt lacks the 
specificity implied in an obligation to "give a reason," an 
obligation that appears focused on the details of the 
arguments. Yet this is precisely the circumstance in which 
the rhetoric of the law, particularly the presumption of 
innocence and the state burden of proof, require acquittal. 

Steve Sheppard, The Metamorphoses of Reasonable Doubt: How Changes 

in the Burden of Proof Have Weakened the Presumption of Innocence, 78 

NOTRE DAME L. REv. 1165, 1213-14 (2003) (footnotes omitted). In these 

scenarios, despite having reasonable doubt, jurors could not vote to acquit in 

light ofWPIC 4.01 's direction to atiiculate a reasonable doubt. Because the 

State will avoid supplying a reason to doubt in its own prosecutions, 

WPIC 4.01 requires that the defense or the jurors supply a reason to doubt, 

shifting the burden and undermining the presumption of innocence. 

The standard of beyond a reasonable doubt enshrines and protects the 

presumption of innocence, "that bedrock axiomatic and elementary principle 

whose enforcement lies at the foundation of the administration of our 

criminal law." Winship, 397 U.S. at 363. The presumption of innocence, 

however, "can be diluted and even washed away if reasonable doubt is 

defined so as to be illusive or too difficult to achieve." Bennett, 161 Wn.2d 

at 316. The doubt "for which a reason exists" language in WPIC 4.01 does 

that in directing jurors the must have a reason to acquit rather than a doubt 

based on reason. 
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In the context of prosecutorial misconduct, courts have consistently 

condemned arguments that jurors must mticulate a reason for having 

reasonable doubt. A fill-in-the-blm1k m·gument "improperly implies that the 

jury must be able to articulate its reasonable doubt" and "subtly shifts the 

burden to the defense." State v. Emery, 174 Wn.2d 741, 760, 278 P.3d 

653 (2012). Such arguments "misstate the reasonable doubt standard and 

impennissibly tmdermine the presumption of innocence." Id. at 759. 

Simply put, "a jury need do nothing to find a defendant not guilty." Id. 

But the improper fill-in-the-blank arguments did not originate in a 

vacuum-they sprang directly from WPIC 4.0l's language. In State v. 

Anderson, for exmnple, the prosecutor recited WPIC 4.01 before making the 

fill-in-the-blm1k argument: "A reasonable doubt is one for which a reason 

exists. That means, in order to find the defendant not guilty, you have to say 

'I don't believe the defendant is guilty because,' and then you have to fill in 

the blm1k." 153 Wn. App. 417, 424, 220 P.3d 1273 (2009). The same 

occurred in State v. Johnson, where the prosecutor told jurors: "What [WPIC 

4.01] says is 'a doubt for which a reason exists.' In order to find the 

defendant not guilty, you have to say, 'I doubt the defendant is guilty and my 

reason is .... ' To be able to find a reason to doubt, you have to fill in the 

blank; that's yom·job." 158 Wn. App. 677, 682, 243 P.3d 936 (2010). 
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If telling jurors they must articulate a reason for reasonable doubt is 

prosecutorial misconduct because it undermines the presumption of 

innocence, it makes no sense to allow the same undermining to occur 

through a jury instruction. The misconduct cases make clear that WPIC 4.01 

is the true culprit. Its doubt "for which a reason exists" language provides a 

natural and seemingly irresistible basis to argue that jurors must give a 

reason for their reasonable doubt. If trained legal professionals mistakenly 

believe WPIC 4.01 means reasonable doubt does not exist unless jurors are 

able to provide a reason for it, then how can average jurors be expected to 

avoid the same pitfall? 

Jury instructions '"must more than adequately convey the law. 

They must make the relevant legal standard manifestly apparent to the 

average juror."' State v. Borsheim, 140 Wn. App. 357, 366-67, 165 P.3d 

417 (2007) (quoting State v. Watkins, 136 Wn. App. 240, 241, 148 P.3d 

1112 (2006)). An ambiguous instruction that permits erroneous 

interpretation of the law is improper. State v. LeFaber, 128 Wn.2d 896, 

902, 913 P.2d 369 (1996). Even if it is possible for an appellate court to 

interpret the instruction in a mmmer that avoids constitutional infirmity, that 

is not the correct standard for measuring the adequacy of jury instructions. 

Courts have an arsenal of interpretive tools at their disposal; jurors do not. 
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WPIC 4.01 fails to make it manifestly clear that jurors need not be 

able to give a reason for why reasonable doubt exists. Far from making 

the proper reasonable doubt standard manifestly apparent to the average 

juror, WPIC 4.01 's infirm language affirmatively misdirects the average 

juror into believing a reasonable doubt cannot exist until a reason for it 

can be articulated. Instructions must not be "misleading to the ordinary 

mind." Dana, 73 Wn.2d at 537. WPIC 4.01 is readily capable of 

misleading the average juror into thinking that acquittal depends on 

whether a reason for reasonable doubt can be stated. The plain language 

of the instruction, and the fact that legal professionals have been misled by 

the instruction in this manner, suppmis this conclusion. 

In State v. Kalebaugh, the Washington Supreme Court held a trial 

comi's preliminary instruction that a reasonable doubt is "a doubt for which 

a reason can be given" was erroneous because "the law does not require that 

a reason be given for a juror's doubt." 183 Wn.2d 578, 585, 355 P.3d 253 

(20 15). That conclusion is sound: 

Who shall detetmine whether able to give a reason, and what 
kind of a reason will suffice? To whom shall it be given? 
One juror may declare he does not believe the defendant 
guilty. Under this instruction, another may demand his 
reason for so thinking. Indeed, each juror may in turn be held 
by his fellows to give his reasons for acquitting, though the 
better rule would seem to require these for convicting. The 
burden of furnishing reasons for not finding guilt established 
is thus cast on the defendant, whereas it is on the state to 
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make out a case excluding all reasonable doubt. Besides, 
jurors are not bound to give reasons to others for the 
conclusion reached. 

State v. Cohen, 78 N.W. 857, 858 (Iowa 1899); see also Siberry v. State, 

33 N.E. 681, 684-85 (Ind. 1893) (criticizing the instruction "a reasonable 

doubt is such a doubt as the jury are able to give a reason for"). 

b. No appellate comi in recent times has directly 
grappled with the challenged language. 

In Bennett, the supreme comi directed trial courts to give WPIC 

4.01 at least "until a better instruction is approved." 161 Wn.2d at 318. In 

Emery, the court contrasted the "proper description" of reasonable doubt 

as a "doubt for which a reason exists" with the improper argument that the 

jury must be able to articulate its reasonable doubt by filling in the blank. 

174 Wn.2d at 759. In Kalebaugh, the comi similarly contrasted "the 

correct jury instruction that a 'reasonable doubt' is a doubt for which a 

reason exists" with an improper instruction that "a reasonable doubt is 'a 

-
doubt for which a reason can be given."' 183 Wn.2d at 584. The 

Kalebaugh comi concluded the trial court's erroneous instruction-"a 

doubt for which a reason can be given"-was harmless, accepting 

Kalebaugh's concession at oral argument "that the judge's remark 'could 

live quite comfortably' with the final instructions given here." Id. at 585. 
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The court's recognition that the instruction "a doubt for which a 

reason can be given" can "live quite comfmiably" with WPIC 4.01 's 

language amounts to a tacit acknowledgment that WPIC 4.01 is readily 

interpreted to require the articulation of a reasonable doubt. Jurors are 

undoubtedly interpreting WPIC 4.01 as requiring them to give a reason for 

their doubt. The plain language of WPIC 4.01 requires this articulation. 

No Washington comi has ever explained how this is not so. Kalebaugh 

did not provide an answer, as appellate counsel conceded the conectness 

ofWPIC 4.01 in that case. 

None of the appellants in Kalebaugh, Emery, or Bennett argued the 

language requiring "a reason" in WPIC 4.01 misstates the reasonable 

doubt standard. "In cases where a legal theory is not discussed in the 

opinion, that case is not controlling on a future case where the legal theory 

is properly raised." Berschauer/Phillips Constr. Co. v. Seattle Sch. Dist. 1, 

124 Wn.2d 816, 824, 881 P.2d 986 (1994); accord In re Electric 

Lightwave, Inc., 123 Wn.2d 530, 541, 869 P.2d 1045 (1994) ("We do not 

rely on cases that fail to specifically raise or decide an issue."). Because