FILED
Feb 12, 2016
Court of Appeals
Division I
State of Washington

NO. 73519-5-I

COURT OF APPEALS OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON

DIVISION I

STATE OF WASHINGTON,

Respondent,

v.

JASON THOMAS,

Appellant.

APPEAL FROM THE SUPERIOR COURT FOR KING COUNTY

THE HONORABLE TIMOTHY A. BRADSHAW

BRIEF OF RESPONDENT

DANIEL T. SATTERBERG King County Prosecuting Attorney

DONALD J. PORTER Senior Deputy Prosecuting Attorney Attorneys for Respondent

> King County Prosecuting Attorney W554 King County Courthouse 516 3rd Avenue Seattle, Washington 98104 (206) 477-9497

9.82.010	Treason	$ \hat{\mathbf{A}}$.	Unranked
9.41.225	Use of Machine Gun in Commission of a Felony	A .	VII ·
46.61.522(1) (a) & (b)	Vehicular Assault – In a Reckless Manner or While Under the Influence of Intoxicating Liquor or any Drug	$\mathbf{B}^{\mathcal{I}_{i+1}}$	IV :
46.61.520(1)(c)	Vehicular Homicide - Disregard for the Safety of Others	A	VII
46.61.520(1)(b)	Vehicular Homicide – In a Reckless Manner	A	УШ
46.61.520(1)(a)	Vehicular Homicide – While Under the Influence of Intoxicating Liquor or any Drug	A	
Any offense curre	ntly listed as a Serious Violent offense		

Any oftense currently listed as a Serious Violent offense

Attempt, Solicitation or Conspiracy to commit a class A felony

Any conviction for a felony offense in effect at any time prior to July 1, 1976, that is comparable to a felony classified as a violent.

Any federal or out-of-state conviction for an offense that, under the laws of this state, would be a felony classified as a violent offense

The Caseload Forecast Council is not liable for errors or omissions in the manual, for sentences that may be inappropriately calculated as a result of a practitioner's or court's reliance on the manual, or for any other written or verbal information related to adult or juvenile sentencing. The scoring sheets are intended to provide assistance in most cases but do not cover all permutations of the scoring rules. If you find any errors or omissions, we encourage you to report them to the Caseload Forecast Council.

CRIME AGAINST PERSONS OFFENSES

RCW 9.94A.411(2)

Statute (RCW)	Offense	Class	Seriousness Level
10.95.020	Aggravated Murder 1	A	XVI
9A.48.020	Arson 1	A	VIII
9A.36.011	-Assault I	$-i_{n}^{-1}\mathbf{A}^{-1}$	XII
9A.36.021(2)(a)	Assault 2	В	IV
9A.36.031(1)(a)- (g) & (i)-(j)	Assault 3 – Excluding Assault 3 of a Peace Officer with a Projectile Stun Gun	Ċ	
9A.36.031(1)(h)	Assault 3 - Of a Peace Officer with a Projectile Stun Gun	C	IV
9A.36.120	Assault of a Child I	(A ,,,,	, IX
9A.36.130	Assault of a Child 2	В	IX
9A.36.140	Assault of a Child 3	C.W.	, III
9A.52.020	Burglary 1	A	VII
9A.44.083	Child Molestation 1	\mathbf{A}	X
9A.44.086	Child Molestation 2	B	VII
9A.44.089	Child Molestation 3	· c	V
9.68A.090(2)	Communication with Minor for Immoral Purposes (Subsequent Violation or Prior Sex Offense Conviction)	С	III
9.16.035(4)	Counterfeiting - Endanger Public Health or Safety		ΓV^{\perp}
9A.36.100	Custodial Assault	, C	III
26.50,110	Domestic Violence Court Order Violation	C	y
46.61.502(6)	Driving While Under the Influence of Intoxicating Liquor or any Drug (Effective 7/1/2007)	C	
9A.56.120	Extortion 1	В	Υ
9A.56.130	Extortion 2	<u>C</u>	III
9.35.020(2)	Identity Theft I	B 3	\mathbf{V}_{-}
9.35.020(3)	Identity Theft 2	С	II
9A.64.020(1):	, Incest 1	B 33	VI
9A.64.020(2)	Incest 2	С	V
9А.44.100(2)(b)	Indecent Liberties - With Forcible Compulsion	Α	X

The Caseload Forecast Council is not liable for errors or omissions in the manual, for sentences that may be inappropriately calculated as a result of a practitioner's or court's reliance on the manual, or for any other written or verbal information related to adult or juvenile sentencing. The scoring sheets are intended to provide assistance in most cases but do not cover all permutations of the scoring rules. If you find any errors or omissions, we encourage you to report them to the Caseload Forecast Council.

SECTION 4 – CRIMES AGAINST PERSONS

Statute (RCW)	Offense	Class	Seriousness Level
9A.44.100(2)(a)	Indecent Liberties - Without Forcible Compulsion	В	VII
9A.72.130	Intimidating a Juror	В	VI
9A.76.180	Intimidating a Public Servant	В	III
9A.72.110	Intimidating a Witness	В	VI
9A.40.020	Kidnapping 1	A	X
9A.40.030(3)(a)	Kidnapping 2	В	$=\mathbf{v}_{-\mathbf{x}}$
9A.32.060	Manslaughter 1	A	XI
9A.32.070	Manslaughter 2	В	· VIII
9A.32.030	Murder 1	<u>A</u>	XV
9A.32.050	Murder 2	Α	VIX
46.61.504(6)	Physical Control of a Vehicle While Under the Influence of Intoxicating Liquor or any Drug (Effective 7/1/2007)	С	V
9A.36.060	Promoting a Suicide Attempt	C	Unranked
9A.88.070	Promoting Prostitution 1	B	VIII
9A.44.040	Rape 1	A	XII
9A.44.050	Rape 2	A	XI
9A.44.060	Rape 3	Ĉ.	13. V .
9A.44.073	Rape of a Child 1	A	XII
9A.44.076	Rape of a Child 2	A	XI
9A.44.079	Rape of a Child 3	C	VI
9A.84.010(2)(b)	Riot (If Against Person)	· c	Unranked
9A.56.200	Robbery 1	A	IX
9A.56.210	Robbery 2	В	ŢΛ
9A.46.110	Stalking	В	V
9.61.160	Threats to Bomb (If Against Person)	В	ΙŸ
9A.40.040	Unlawful Imprisonment	C	III Tarangan panggan panggan panggan
46.61.522(1)(c)	Vehicular Assault - Disregard for the Safety of Others	В	Ш
46.61.522(1) (a) & (b)	Vehicular Assault – In a Reckless Manner or While Under the Influence of Intoxicating Liquor or any Drug	В	IV
46.61.520(1)(c)	Vehicular Homicide - Disregard for the Safety of Others	A	ΛΠ
46.61.520(1)(b)	Vehicular Homicide – In a Reckless Manner	A	VIII
46.61.520(1)(a)	Vehicular Homicide – While Under the Influence of Intoxicating Liquor or any Drug	A	XI

The Caseload Forecast Council is not liable for errors or omissions in the manual, for sentences that may be inappropriately calculated as a result of a practitioner's or court's reliance on the manual, or for any other written or verbal information related to adult or juvenile sentencing. The scoring sheets are intended to provide assistance in most cases but do not cover all permutations of the scoring rules. If you find any errors or omissions, we encourage you to report them to the Caseload Forecast Council.